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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of CMR NIKKE] INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED
Report on Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of CMR NIKKEI INDIA PRIVATE
LIMITED (*the Company’) which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the cash flows statement
and the statement of changes in equity for the year ended on that date, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory
information (hereinafter referred to as “ the Financial Statements™).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements read together with other notes thereon give the information required
by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in
conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (*Ind AS”) and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2025, and its profit (including other comprehensive Income), changes in equity and its
cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
(SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance
with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”)
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements
under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s
Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon
The Company’s board of directors is responsible for the other information, The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual Report including Annexures to Annual Report

but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,,
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In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s Responsibilities for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, other Comprehensive
Income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate implementation and maintenance of
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. The Board of
Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting process,

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statement. Our responsibility is
to express an opinion on these financial statement based on our audit,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may iz Xgme;c%llusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of iz tefaal ooz,




Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the
Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of section 143 (11) of the Companies Act, 2013, we
give in the Annexure-A a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of aforesaid financial
statement;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books, except for the matters stated in the
paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)

Rules, 2014;
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other Comprehensive
Income, Statement of Change in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report
are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the specified under Section
133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March,
2025 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31st
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith,
reference is made to our remarks in paragraph (b) above on reporting under Section 143(3)(b)
and paragraph (i)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure-B”; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us, no remuneration has been paid
by the Company to its directors during the year. Hence, reporting required as per provisions of
section 197 of the Act is not applicable;

i) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements — Refer Note 30 (B) to the financial statements.

ii. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31,
2025;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2025.

iv. (a) The management has represented that no funds have been advanced or loaned or
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
(“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate
Beneficiaries. Based on the reasonable audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to
our notice that such representation contain§any material misstatement.
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vi.

{(b) The management has represented that no funds have been received by the Company
from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (*Funding Parties™), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether,
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. Based on reasonable
audit procedures adopted by us, nothing has come to our notice that such representation
contains any material misstatement,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, no dividend
declared and/or paid during the year the Company.

Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company has used accounting
software for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025
which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit
trail feature is not enabled for certain master table and direct change to the underlying
database using privileged/ administrative access rights in respect of one of the software, as
described in note 44 to the financial statements. Further, during the course of performing
our procedures, we did not notice any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with in
cases where the audit trail feature was enabled or audit trail not preserved by the Company
as per the statutory requirements for record retention.

For Goel Sharma & Associates

CA. Devesh
Partner
M. No. 517638

UDIN: 2654 638 BMIxy F 232498

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 08" May 2025




Annexure “A” to the Independent Auditors’ Report to the Member of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited (‘the company’) on the financial statements for the year ended 31%
March 2025.

The Annexure referred to in Paragraph (1) under the heading of “Report on Other Legal
and Regulatory Requirements” of our report for the year ended 31% March 2025.

i) In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
Assets:

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment.
(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of
intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its PPE by
which all PPE are verified in a phased manner over a period of four years. In
our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having
regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant to the
programme, PPE were physically verified by the Management during the year.
In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us,
certain immaterial discrepancies were noticed and treatment of same will be
considered in next year.

(c) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, the title deeds of all immovable
properties are held in the name of the company.

(d) The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment and
intangible assets during the year.

(e) No proceedings have been initiated during the year or are pending against the
Company as at March 31, 2025 for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as amended in 2016) and rules
made thereunder.

ii) (a) During the year, management has conducted physical verification of
inventories at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such physical verification.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of rupees
five crore, in aggregate, from banks or financial institutions which are secured
on the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements
led by the Company in respect of current assets held by it and offered as
Onsy, . . . . e . .
-S}gunty with such banks or financial institutions are in agreement with the
. Dooks of account of the Company of respective quarters and no material
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iii)

vi)

vii)

According to information, explanation and representation given by the
management and based upon audit procedure performed, the company has not
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in the nature of loans secured or unsecured, to companies, firms,
limited liability partnerships or other parties during the year and hence reporting
under para 3(iii) (a) to (f) of the Order is not applicable.

According to information, explanation and representation given by the
management, the company has not granted any loan, made any investment,
given any guarantee and securities provided which require compliances under
section 185 & 186 of Act 2013.

The Company has not accepted any deposit or amounts which are deemed to be
deposits. Hence, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable.

We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company
prescribed by the Central Government under Section 148 of the Companies Act,
2013 and are of the opinion that prima facie the prescribed cost records have
been maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete,

(a) According to the records of the Company, the company is generally
regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including Goods & Service tax,
Provident fund, Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service
Tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other
material statutory dues applicable to it, with the appropriate authorities.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed
amount payable in respect of Goods & Service tax, Provident fund,
Employees’ state insurance, Income tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, duty of
custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31% March, 2025 for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
of the company examined by us, the dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-
tax, service tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise and
value added tax on account of any dispute are as follows:-




Name of Nature of Dues Amount Period to which | Forum where
the Statue (inRs.) amount relates | dispute is
pending
Income Tax | Demand raised under section | 3,37,30,000/- | F.Y.2014-15 CIT (Appeal),
Act, 1961 69 C of Income Tax Act. Faridabad
Finance Demands raised on account | 1,43,000/- F.Y.2015-16 CESTAT,
Act, 1994 of non-payment / short Haryana
payment of service tax under
reverse charge.
Goods & Demand  raised  under| 68,35,000/- F.Y. 2019-20 GST Appellate
Service Tax | Gujarat GST Act’ 2017, Authority,
Act’2017 regarding High utilization Gujarat
Input Tax Credit as
compared to GSTR-3B vs
GSTR-2A.
Goods & Demand  raised under | 93,55,610/- FY.2020-21 GST Appellate
Service Tax | Gujarat GST Act’ 2017, Authority,
Act’2017 regarding ineligible Input Gujarat
Tax Credit, difference in E
Way Bill VS GSTR 3B.
Goods & Demand raised under | 6,98,562/- F.Y. 2020-21 GST Appellate
Service Tax | Gujarat GST Act’ 2017, Authority,
Act’2017 regarding  taxability of Haryana
secondment of employees
from overseas group entities.
Goods & Demand  raised under | 1,77,467/- F.Y.2018-19 GST Appellate
Service Tax | Gujarat GST Act’ 2017, Authority,
Act’2017 regarding Incorrect availing Haryana
of Input Tax Credit due to a
non-existent supplier.

viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no
transactions relating to previously unrecorded income that have been
surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under
the Income Tax Act, 1961.

ix) (a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to

us, the company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to a
Financial Institution, Bank, government (both state and central). The company
does not have any outstanding debenture during the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to




xi)

Xii)

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records, the Company has not taken any term loan during the
year, Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, funds raised on
short-term basis have, prima facie, not been used during the year for long-term
purposes by the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, company has
not taken any funds during the year, from any entity or person on account of or
to meet the obligations of its associates.

(f) According to the information and explanations given to us, company does
not have any securities held in subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate
companies. Hence, reporting under clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) during the year. Hence, reporting
under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable,

{(b) During the year, the company has not made any preferential allotment or
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully or partly or
optionally) and hence reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not
applicable.

(a) According to information and explanations given to us and based upon the
audit procedures performed during the year, no fraud by the company or any
fraud on the Company by its officers/employees have been noticed or reported
during audit.

(b) According to information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has been filed in Form ADT-4
as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
with the Central Government, during the year and upto the date of this report.

(c) According to information and explanations given to us by the management,
there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
the company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order
is not applicable. N
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Xiii)

Xiv)

Xv)

xvi)

Xvii)

xviii)

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of company, transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc.
as required by the accounting standards and Companies Act, 2013.

() In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal audit system
commensurate with the size and the nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till
date, for the period under audit.

According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the company, company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with directors.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the order is not applicable and hence
provisions of section 192 of the Act, 2013 are not applicable to the company.

a) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
para 3(xvi)(a) of the order is not applicable to the company.

b) The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing
Finance activities. Accordingly, the requirement to report on para 3(xvi)(b) of
the order is not applicable to the company.

¢) The Company is not engaged in Core Investment Company as defined in
regulation made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on para 3(xvi)(c) of the order is not applicable to the company.

d) There are no other company as CIC as a part of the group, hence the
requirement to report on para 3(xvi)(d) of the order is not applicable to the
company.

The Company has not incurred cash losses during the financial year covered by

our audit and the immediately preceding financial year.

the year.




Xix)

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of
financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information
accompanying the financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and Management plans and based on our examination of the evidence
supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from
the balance sheet date, We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the
future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on
the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall
due.

(a) There are no unspent amounts towards Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) on other than ongoing projects requiring a transfer to a Fund specified in
Schedule VII to the Companies Act in compliance with second proviso to sub-
section (5) of Section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xx)(a) of the Order is not applicable for the year.

(b) In respect of ongoing projects, the Company has transferred unspent
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) amount as at the end of the previous
financial year, to a Special account within a period of 30 days from the end of
the said financial year in compliance with the provision of section 135(6) of the
Act.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn. No Q4074 4R

Partner

M. No. 517638
UDIN: 2541 F63% BMIRY F3298

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 08" May 2025




Annexure - B to the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date on the Financial
Statement of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of CMR Nikkei India
Private Limited (“the Company™) as of 31 March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note™) issued by the ICAI and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained
and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
QOur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’ s'igh‘fqma],“sﬁx{ancxal controls system over financial
reporting. :




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that

1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and

3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on
the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies
or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants

CA. Devesh Sharma
Partner
M. No. 517638

UDIN: 26 51638 B MIRYFI29g

Place: Faridabad
Dated: 08" May 2025




. CMR Nikkei India Private Linited

Balance Sheet as ot March 31, 2025
{(Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. \ As ot Asat
Particulars NoISS  Mareh 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Asscls
Property, plant & equipment k] 8,520.02 9,259.85
Capital work In progress 3 4.72 -
Intangible Assets 4 0.39 0.63

EFin:mcinI Asscls
i. Loans 5 1141 4.54
i, Other Financial Asscts [ 98.66 91.23
Non-Current Tax Assels-{Net) 16670 436.68
Other Non-Current Asscls 8 47.86 .37
8,849.76 9,793.30

Current Assets
Inventories 9 14,192.57 9.626.67

Financial Assets

i. Loans 5 14.97 9.86

ii. Trade Receivables 10 18,553.47 13,637.71

iti. Cash And Cash Equivalenis 1) 114 6.40

w. Bank Balances Other Than (lii) Above 11 (i 11131 102.41

v. Other Financial Assets 6 219.80 13.04
Other Current Assets 8 5.808.50 8.084.17

38,912.03 31,481.16

Assets Ilehd For sale 1.10 1.92
Total Assets 47,762,89 41,276.38
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Enuity
Share Capital 12 8529730 8,297 30
Ciher Equity

i. Securitics Premium 114.60 114,60

it. Retzined Earnings 22,439.68 19,636.25
Total Equity 30.851.58 28.048.15
LIABILITIES
Non- current liabilitics
Delerred tax liability (net) 7 674.86 673.23
Long Term Provisions 14 63.94 56.74

738.80 725.97
Current Linbilitics
Financial Liabilitics
i. Borrowings 13 6,023.73 3,205.37
ii. Trade Payables 16
-Due to Micro Smazll and Small Enterprises 4413 134,70
-Dues to Others* 0,200.91 837217
iv. Other Financial Liabilities 17 110.93 232.26
Current Tax Liabilitics{Net) 18 72.04 209.33
Shon Term Provisions 14 53.07 44.46
Other Current Linbilities 15 667.70 299.97
16,172.51 12,498.206
‘Totn! Liabilities 16.911.31 13,228 23
Total cquity and liabilitics 47,762,589 41,274,358

The accompany ing 101es form an integral pant of these financial siatemenis
As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates

Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N

CA. Devesh Sharma
Pariner
Membership No. : 517638

Place: Faridabad m:t:mwnl

Date: 4 Company Seeretary
M. No - ATd510

W

Far and on behalfl of the Board of Directors
of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Ridhimn Bagla

Director
DIN 03045297




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss for the year ended Marceh 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particul Nat For the year ended For the year ended
artieulars ales March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
REVENUE
Revenue from operations 19 2,27931.52 1,87,280.06
Other income 20 998.88 911.87
Total income 2,28.930.40 1.88,191.93
EXPENSES
Cost of raw malerial and components consumed 21 1,86.314.98 1,69.978.34
Purchase of iraded goods 22 27,281.77 4,864.54
{Increase) Decrease in inventorics of finished goods 23 (292.04) 342.63
Emplovee bencfhits expense 24 1.995.14 1.904.90
Finance costs 25 590.96 896.29
Depreciation and amortization expense 6 733.30 784.42
Other expenses 27 8.477.37 7.593.75
Tatal expenses 2,25.101.48 1.86,364.87
Profit before tax 3.828.92 1,827.06
Tax expense: 7
Current tax 1,029.92 837.27
Tax Earlier Year (3.03) (21.65)
Deferred 1ax (Credit)/charge relating o earlier year 48.83 24.18
Deferred tax {CreditVcharge (47.96) (360.79)
Profit for the period/year 2,801.17 1,348.05
Other Camprehensive Income 28
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gain/(losses) on defined benefit plans 3.03 258
Income tax credit/ (boss) on DBP (0.76} (0.55)
Other Comprehensive Incomef{Loss) 2,27 1.93
Total Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year 2.803.43 1,349.98
Earnings per share: (nominal value per share of Rs 10 29
ench) =
1) Basic 338 1.62
2) Diluted 3.38 1.62

The accompanying notes are an imtegral part of the financial stalements.
As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associates
Chartered Accountants
ICAI'S FRN :- 040714N" «!
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CA. Devesh Shinrma,

Partner Saed ACY
Membership No. : 517638 ===

Place: Faridabad
Date:

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

hcr\yushi Agrawal
ompany Secretary
M. No- A74519

e

Ridhima Bagla
Director
DIN 03045297




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2025
(Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

. For the year endedl For the year ended
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Cash Nlow from operating activitics

Profit before tax 3,828.92 1,827.06
Adjustmrents for:

Depreciation and amortization expenses 733.30 784.42
Re-measurernent {losses) on defined bencfit plans 303 2.58
Interest Income (37.16) (8.55)
Loss on salz of property, plant and equipment 421 0.62
Interest expenses 570,73 882.74

1,294.11 1,661.81

Operating profit before adfustments 5,123.03 3,488.87
Adjustments:

(Increasey Decrease in Inventories {4,565.90) 3,795.86
(Increascy Deercase in Trade Receivables (4.915.78) (4,327.08)
(Increase) Decrease in Other financial assets (232,67 (8.66)
(Increasc)Y Decrease in Other assels 2,270.79 (2,650.92)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade payables 7318.17 (1,082.17)
Increase/ {Drecrense) in Other financigl linbilitics 165.49) (8.08)
Increase/ {Decrease) in Other liabilitics 364.18 3399
Increase/ {Decrease) in Provisions 15.81 .61
Change in the adjustments {6,390.87) {4,237.45)
Cash generated from operations (L267.83) (748.58)
Less : Taxes paid (894.19) (588.68)
Net cash flow from operating activities (A) {2,162.03) (1.337.26)
Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of propenty, plant and cquipntent (net) (209.29) (205.47)
Procecds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 87.23 60.73
Interest received 44.55 332
Investment in fixed depaosits (8.90) (16.47)
Net cash generated/{used) in investing nctivities: (B) {86.41) {157.99)
Net cash flow from financing activities:

Proceeds/{Repayment) from short term borrowings (net) 281836 2,246.26
Interest paid {564.91) (867.41)
Net cash generatedf{uscd) from financing activities: { C) 2.253.45 1,378.85
Net change In Cash & cash equivalents {A+B+C) 5.01 (116,40}
Cash & cash equivalents as at the beginning of year (refer Note 11¢i)) 6.40 122.80
Cash & cash equivalents as nt end of the year (refer Note 1) 1141 6.40
Cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following

Cash on hand (Note 11) 1.52 1.47
On current accounts (Note 11} 908 243
On cash credit accounts -Debit batance (Note 11) 0.81 210
Balance as per statement of cash flows 11.41 6.40

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements.

As per our report of even date

For M/s Goel Sharma & Associnles

Chartered Accountanis TN
. . TG AT

ICAI'S FRN :- 040714/@;‘-‘ EASEN

RN
CA. Devesh Sharma \\""
Pariner \_\;\_’
Membership No. ; 517638

Place: Faridabad
Date:

c-"”i"‘_uo

For and on behalf of the Bourd of Directors

of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

anaging Ditectar

i

Ridhima Bagla
v Director
DIN 03045267

Avushi Apgrowal
Company Secreiary
M. No- AT4519




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unlcss otherwise stated)

Equity Share capital Qther equity- Reserves and Surplus
f ", OCI Effective
Particulars No. of shares Amount Retained Securities nortion of cash flow Tatal Total equity
earnings premium
hedge rescrve
As at March 31, 2023 8,29,72,975 8,297.30 18,286.27 114.60 - 18,400.88 16,698.17
Add: Profit for the year - - 1,348.05 - - 1,348.05 1,348.05
Add: Other comprehensive income - - 1.93 - - 1.93 1.93
Add: Reecived during the vear - - - - - - -
As at March 31,2024 8,29,72,975 8,297.30 19,636.25 114.60 - 19,750.85 28,048.15
Add: Profit for the year - - 2,801.17 - - 2,801.17 2,801.17
Add: Other comprehensive income - - 2.26 - - 2.26 226
Add: Received during the year - - - - - - -
As at March 31, 2025 8,29.72.975 8.297.30 22,439.68 114.60 - 22,554.28 30,85].58

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date

For AM/fs Goel Sharma & Associates

Tol prn 0a071aN
FARIDABAD

CA, Devesh Shar .:I\_
Partner &3@
1

Membership No, : 5 6@2@

oy
w
>

o

Place: Faridabad
Date: 8th May 2025

For and on hehalf of the Board of Directors
of CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

N

Ridhima Bapla
Dircetor
DIN 03045297

anaging Director
00595292
Ayushi Agrawal
4

Company Secrelary
M. No - A74519




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Notes to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amount in Rupees lacs, unless otherwise stated)

1.  Corporate information

CMR NIKKEI INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED (the Company) is a private limited Company domiciled in India,
incorporated w.e.f. 4th July 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The company is manufacturer of
Aluminium based Die Cast Alloys and Zinc Alloys.

These financial Statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors of
the Company in their meeting held on May 8, 2023,

1.1. Basis of preparation

These Standalone Financial Statements (* financial statements’) have been prepared in accordance Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 {as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division {1 of
Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013 (IND AS compliant Schedule [11}, to the extent applicable.

These financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis and under the historical cost basis, except for the
certain financial assets and financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value as per the requirements of
the Ind AS.

The preparation of these financial statements requires the usc of cerlain significant accounting estimates and
judgements. 1t also requires the management to exercise judgement in applying the Company’s accounting policies.
The areas where estimates are significant to the financial statemenis, or areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, are disclosed in note 2.23.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are reported in lacs of Indian Rupees (*Rupees’ or ‘Rs.), except
per share data and unless stated otherwise and rounded off to nearest lacs.

2.  Summary of material accounting policies

The accounting policies, as set out below, have been consistently applied, by the Company, to all the years presented
in the financial statements.

2.1. Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Ministry of Corporate Affaris (“MCA™) has carried out amendmenis to the follewing accounting standards.
The effect on adoption of following mentioned amendments had no impact on the standalone Ind AS financial
statements. The Company has not early adopted any standards or amendments that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

(i) Ind AS 117: Insurance Contracts; The Ministry of corporate AfTairs (MCA) notified the Ind AS 117, Insurance
Contracts, vide notification dated 12 August 2024, under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2024, which is effective from annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April 2024,

(ii) Amendment to ind AS 116 Leases — Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback; The MCA notified the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Second Amendment Rules, 2024, which amend Ind AS 116, Leases,
with respect to Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback.

The amendment specifies the requirements that a seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in a sale
and leascback transaction, to ensure the seller-lessee does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains.

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or afler 1 April 2024 and must be applied
retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions entered into afier the date of initial application of Ind AS 116.

The amendment does not have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2.2 Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An
assel is classified as current when it is:

i)  Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

ii} Held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii) Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv} Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve
months afier the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when:

i)  Itis expected to be settled in ngrmal operating cycle

if) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

iii} It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at [east twelve
months after the reporting period

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

2.3 Forcign currencies
The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company at their respective functional currency spot
rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates
of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monelary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising
on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss
on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised
in QCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

2.4 Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instrumenits, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance sheet date. |

Fair value is the price that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that |
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

»  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability !




The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a {iability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized
within the following fair value hierarchy based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significani to the fair value measurement is
directly or indirectly abservable.

Level 3 —Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occutred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company’s management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value measurement,
such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair value, and for non-recurring
measurement, such as assets heid for distribution in discontinued operation.

External valuers are involved for valuation of significant assets and significant liabilities, if any.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are
required to be re-measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the
management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation
computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

The management, in conjunction with the Company’s external valuers, also compares the change in the fair value
of each asset and liability with relevant external sources to determine whether the change is reasonable.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained
above.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the relevant
notes.

2.5 Revenue from contract with customer

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods are transferred to the customer at
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services. The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it
typically controls the goods before transferring them to the customer.




Sale of products

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at the point in time when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer. Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and rebates. The
Company collects Goods & Service Tax (GST) on behalf of the government and therefore, these are not economic
benefits flowing to the Company. Henee, these are excluded from the revenue.

Variable consideration includes trade discounts, volume rebates and incentives, etc. The Company estimates the
variable consideration with respect to above based on an analysis of accumulated historical experience. The
Company adjusts estimate of revenue at the earlier of when the most likely amount of consideration expected to
receive changes or when the consideration becomes fixed.

Sale of services

Revenue from job work in process is recognised by reference to the stage of completion. Stage of completion is
measured by reference to job work in process at the year end and is recognized at measured value of conversion
charges as increase\ decrease in job work in process. The Company collects service tax/ Goods and Services Tax on
job work on behalf of the government and, therefore, it is not an economic benefit flowing to the Company. Hence,
it is excluded from revenue.

Interest income

Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

Export incentive
Export incentive under the EPCG scheme are accounted in the year of export of goods considering certainty in the
collection of export proceeds.

2.6 Government grant

Government grants are recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attached
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 1o compensate, are expensed. When
the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis.

When loans or similar assistance are provided by governments or related institutions, with an interest rate below the
current applicable market rate, the effect of this favourable interest is regarded as a government grant. The loan or
assistance js initially recognised and measured at fair value and the government grant is measured as the difference
between the initial carrying value of the loan and the proceeds received. The loan is subsequently measured as per
the accounting policy applicable lo financial liabilities.

2.7 Income Taxes

The income tax expense comprise of current and deferred income tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the

taxation authoritics in accordance with the Income Tax Act, 1961 enacted in India. The tax rates and tax laws used
to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the reporting date in India.




Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in
equity). Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the Income tax returns with
respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretations and establishes provisions
where appropriate.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
{a) When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or

liability in a transaction thal is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

{b) In respect of 1axable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and

associates, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be conltrolled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits
and any unused tax losses, if any. Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except:

(a) When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss

(b) In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and asscciates,
deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit wiil be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced 1o the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized delerred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that
it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {either in *OCID’
or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly
in equity.

The Company offsets deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority.




2.8 Property, plant and equipment (‘PPE’)

An item of PPE is recognised as an asset, if and only if, it is probable that the future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

Capital work in progress and PPE are initially recognised at cost. The initial cost of PPE comprises its purchase
price (including non-refundable duties and taxes and excluding any trade discounts and rebates), and any directly
attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Subsequent to initial recognition, freehold land is carried at historical cost and other items of PPE are stated al cost
less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. When significant parts are required to be replaced at
regular intervals, the Company recognises such parls as separate component of assets and depreciates separately
based on their specific useful life. When an item of PPE is replaced, then its carrying amount is de-recognised from
the balance sheet and cost of the new item of PPE is recognised.

The expenditures those are incurred after the item of PPE is available for use, such as repairs and maintenance, are
charged to the statement of profit and loss in the period in which such costs are incurred. However, in situations
where such expenditure can be measured reliably, and is probable that future economic benefits associated with it
will flow to the Company, it is included in the asset’s carrying value or as a separate asset, as appropriate.

Depreciation on PPE js provided on straight line basis using the rates as specified in Part C of Schedule II of the
Companies Act, 2013.

Individual items of property, plant and equipment costing up to Rs. 10,000/- is charged to the statement of profit
and loss in the year in which it is purchased or acquired.

The identified components are depreciated separately over their useful lives; the remaining components are
depreciated over the life of principal asset.

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method of PPE are reviewed, and adjusted appropriately, at each
reporting date. The effect of any change in the estimated useful lives, residual values and / or depreciation method
are accounted for prospectively, and accordingly the depreciation is calculated over the PPE’s remaining revised
useful life. The cost and the accumulated depreciation for PPE sold, serapped, retired or otherwise disposed off are
de-recognised from the balance sheet and the resulting gains / (losses) are included in the statement of profit and
loss within other expenses / other income.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its property, plant and
equipment recognised at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value except
accounting for Government grant as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment and capital work-in-
progress.

The cost of capita) work-in-progress is presented separately in the balance sheet,

2.9 Intangible asscts

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition,
intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Software
is capitalised at the amounts paid to acquire the respective license for use and is amortised over the period of license
not exceeding six years from the date when the asset is available for use.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on straight line basis
over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets from the date they are available for use. The amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at each balance sheet date.
If expected useful life is significant different from previous assessment, the change in useful life is made on a
prospective basis.




Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

Transition to Ind AS

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all its intangible assets
recognised at April 01, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of
intangible assets.

2.10 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly atiributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily lakes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All
other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other
costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the exlent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.

2.11 Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date, whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU} fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for an individual asset, unless
the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets.
When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and
is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared
separately for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
caiculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifih year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered
by the most recent budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady
or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate
does not exceed the long-lerm average growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used. Impairment losses, if any, are recognized in Statement
of Profit and Loss as a component of depreciation and amortisation expense.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited to
the extent the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is carried at the
revalued amount, in which case the reverse is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.12 Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys
the right to control the usc of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The Company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases
and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use
assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.




i) Right of use assets

The Company recognises right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying
asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for any re-measurcment of lease liabilities, The cost of right-of-use assets includes
the amount of lease liabilities recognised, initial direct cosls incurred, and lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives received.

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise
of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.

The right-of-use assets are also subject to impairment. Refer to the accounting policies 3.11 on Impairment of non-
financial assets.

ii) Lease liabilities
At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of
lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments are fixed payments.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is re-measured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in the lease payments (c.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate used to determine such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

The Company’s lease liabilities are disclosed separately in the balance sheet.

iii) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption lo its short-term leases except in case of lease
contracts with related parties since there exist economic incentive for the company to continue using the leased
premises for a period longer than the 11 months and considering the contract is with the related parties, it does not
foresee non-renewal of the lease term for future periods, thus basis the substance and economics of the arrangements,
management believes that under Ind AS 116, the lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been
determined considering the period for which management has an economic incentive lo use the leased asset {i.e.
reasonable certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period
is based on management assessment of various factors including the remaining useful life of the assel as on the date
of transition. The management has assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April
01,2019. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term.

Company as a lessor
Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are

classified as operating leases. Rental income from operating lease is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

2.13 Inventories

Inventorics are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with Ind AS 2 - Inventories

Raw materials, traded goods and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. However,
materials and other items held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below cost if the finished
products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. Cost of raw materials and
traded goods is determined on the basis of weighted average basis. However, inventory pertaining to stores & spares
are valued at cost. During the year, the Company changed its inventory cost formula from FIFO to moving weighted
average method to provide more reliable and relevant information. The change has been accounted for in accordance
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with Ind AS 8 — Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Ervors, and its impact is nct material,
therefore has not been accounted in the financial statements of current year.

Finished goods are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost includes direct materials and direct labour
and a proportion of manufacturing overheads based on normal operating capacity. Cost is determined on a moving
weighted average basis.

Inventories qualifying as hedged items in a fair value hedge relationship are adjusted for the hedging gain or loss
on hedged item in accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.14 Provisions

General

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying cconomic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance contract,
the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to a provision is presented in the Statement of Profit and Loss, net of any reimbursement.

Ifthe effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to
the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is
no longer probable that an outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

2.15 Contingent Liabilities and asscts

Contingent liabilities arc disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence of
which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Company or a present obligation that arises from past events where it is either not probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made.

Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
2.16 Employee benefits

The Company’s employee benefits mainly include wages, salaries, bonuses, contribution to plans, defined benefit
plans and compensated absences. The employee benefits are recognised in the year in which the associated services
are rendered by the Company employees.

i)  Defined contribution plans — Provident fund

Provident fund

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a
separate entily and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. The Company makes specified monthly
contributions towards provident fund which are defined contribution plans. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the funds. The Company recognises contribution payable to the fund scheme in the
statement of profit and loss, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme
for service received before the balance sheel date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the
scheme is recognised as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid
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exceeds the contribution due for services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognised as an
asset to the extent that the prepayment will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

ii} Defined benefit plans - Gratuity

Gratuity

The Company's gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in return for their
service in the current and prior periods; this benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised
past service costs and the fair value of any plan assets are deducted. The calculation of the Company’s obligation
under this plan is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

Re-measurements comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 10 the asset ceiling (if
applicable) are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a correspanding debit or credit to retained earnings
through other comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are not reclassified to
profit or loss in subsequent periods.

All other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss as employee benefit
expenses. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognised when the
curtailment or settlement occurs. Curtailment gains and losses are accounted for as past service costs.

iii) Other employee benefits

The employees can carry forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilise it in future
service periods or receive cash compensation during termination of employment.

Compensated absence, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee
benefit. The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date, The Company treats compensated
absences expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee benefit for measurement
purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation using the projected
unit credit method at the year-end. Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken to the statement of profit and loss.
The Company presents the leave liability as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an
unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.

2.17 Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value through
other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it needs to
giverise to cash flows that are *solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal amount outstanding.
This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument level. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commils to
purchase or sell the asset.




Subsequent measurement

i)  Financial assets carried at amortized cost (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at amortized cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is
to hold the asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise
on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

i) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (debt instrument)

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if it is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assels
and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates that are solely payments of principal and
interest on principal amount outstanding. Further in cases where the Company has made an irrevocable election
based on its business model, for its investments which are classificd as equity instruments the subsequent changes
in fair value are recognized in other comprehensive income.

There are no financial instruments in thc Company measured at fair value through other comprehensive income.

iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair value through profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective interest method or at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss if the criteria
under Ind AS 109 are satisfied. All other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost.

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance Sheet date, the carrying amounts
approximate the fair value due to the short maturity of these instruments.

a) Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directiy atributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability
is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109
and the amount recognised less cumulative amortization.

b)  Borrowings

On initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through
the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that
are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire or it transfers the financial assct and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under IND AS 109. A financial
liability (or a part of the financial liability) is derecognized from the Company’s balance sheet when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.
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Fair value of financial instruments

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses a variety of methods and assumptions
that are based on market conditions and risks existing at cach reporting date. The methods used to determine fair
value include discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market prices and dealer quotes. All methods of
assessing fair value result in general approximation of value, and such value may never actually be realized.

For all other financial instruments the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of those
instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the standalone balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilitics simultaneously.

Impairment of financial asscts
The Company applies the expected credit loss model for recognising impairment loss on financial assets measured
at amortised cost, debt instruments at FVTOCI, trade receivables and other contractual rights to receive cash or other
financial asset.

Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights. Credit loss is the difference between ail contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive (i.c. all cash shortfalls), discounted at
the original effective interest rate (or credit-adjusted effective interest rate for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets). The Company estimates cash flows by considering all contractual terms of the financial
instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) through the expected life of that financial
instrument.

The Company measures the loss allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the lifetime expected
credit losses if the credit risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition, If the
credit risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Company measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses. 12-month
expected credit losses are portion of the life-time expected credit losses and represent the lifetime cash shortfalls
that will result if default occurs within the 12 months afier the reporting date and thus, are not cash shortfalls that
are predicted over the next 12 months.

For trade receivables, the Company follows "simplified approach for recognition of impairment loss. The application
of simplified approach docs not require the group to track changes in credit risk.

Further, for the purpose of measuring lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables, the Company
has used a practical expedient as permitted under Ind AS 109. This expected credit loss allowance is computed based
on a provision matrix which takes into account historical credit loss experience and adjusted for forward-looking
information.

2.18 Derivatives

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward cxchange contracts to hedge risks associated
with foreign currency fluctyations.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the
fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in the fair value of derivatives are taken directly to statement of profit and loss.
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2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an
original maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

2.20 Cash dividend

The Company recognises a liability to make cash distributions to equily holders of the parent when the distribution
is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the discretion of the Company. As per the corporate laws in India,
a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A corresponding amount is recognised directly
in equity.

2.21 Segment

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision maker. The Chief Operating decision maker reviews business performance at an overall Company level as
one segment "Aluminium ingots and zinc based Alloys.”.

2.22 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holder of the Company
(after deducting preference dividends and attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of cquity shares
outstanding during the year. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that
they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year is adjusted for events such as bonus issue.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.23 Derivatives and Hedge Accounting

The Company uses derivative financial instruments such as forward exchange contracls, forward commodity
contracts and currency future contracts to hedge risks associated with foreign currency fluctuations and commodity
price risks. The Company also holds commodity future contracls to mitigate the risk of changes in price of
commodity.

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments

This category has derivative assets or liabilities which are not designated as hedges.

Although the Company believes that these derivatives constitute hedges from an economic perspective, they may
not qualify for hedge accounting under Ind AS 109. Any derivative that is either not designated a hedge, or is s0
designated but is ineffective, is recognized on balance sheet and measured initially at fair value. Subsequent to
initial recognition, derivatives are re-measured at fair value, with changes in fair value being recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Hedge Accounting
The Company designates forward commodity contracts under fair value hedges to hedge the exposure to changes
in prices of the commodities for its unrecognized firm commitment and existing inventory.




At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Company formally designates and documents the hedge relationship
{o which the Company wishes to apply hedge accounting and the risk management cbjective and strategy for
undertaking the hedge. The effectiveness of hedge instruments is assessed and measured at inception and on an
ongoing basis.

The documentation includes identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged item, the nature of the risk being
hedged, and how the Company will assess whether the hedging relationship meets the hedge effectivencss
requirements (including the analysis of sources of hedge ineffectiveness and how the hedge ratio is determined).

Hedges that meet the hedge cifectiveness criteria, the change in the fair value of hedging instrument and the hedge
item is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. When an unrecognised firm commitment is designated as a
hedged item, the subsequent cumulative change in the fair value of the firm commitment attributable to the hedged
risk is recognised as an asset or liability with a corresponding gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

2.24 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainly about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future
periods.

Judgements
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements,
which have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the standalone financial statements:

a) Contingencies

Contingent liabilities may arise from the ordinary course of business in relation to claims against the Company,
including legal, contractor, land access and other claims. By their nature, contingencies will be resolved only when
one-or more uncertain future events occur or fail to occur. The assessment of the existence, and potential quantum,
of contingencies inherently involves the exercise of significant judgments and the use of estimates regarding the
outcome of future events.

b) Revenue recognition and presentation

The Company assesscs its revenue arrangements against specific criteria, i.e. whether it has exposure to the
significant risks and rewards associated with the sale of goods or the rendering of services, in order to determine if
it is acting as a principal or as an agent. The Company has concluded that they operating on a principal to principal
basis in all its revenue arrangements.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters
available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future
developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the contro! of
the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation
is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable
market prices less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model.
The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years and do not include restructuring activities that the
Company is not yet committed to or significant future invesiments that will enhance the asset’s performance of the
CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well as the




expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes. These estimates are most relevant
to goodwill and other intangibles with indefinite useful lives recognised by the Company.

b) Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The present value of the gratuity is determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making
various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the
discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions
are reviewed at each reporting date.

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans
operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the
currencies of the post-employment benefit obligation. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality
tables for the specific countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to demographic
changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates for the respective
countries.

¢)  Allowance for uncollectible trade receivables

Trade receivables generally do not carry any interest and are stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate
allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts. Individual trade receivables are written off when management
deems them not to be collectible.

d) Property, plant and equipment
The carrying value of property, plant and equipment has been disclosed in note 3.

e) Intangible assets
The carrying value of intangible assets has been disclosed in note 4.

f)  Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilitics recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF
model. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible,
a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility.

Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

g) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental
borrowing rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to
pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company
‘would have to pay’, which requires estimation when no observable rates are available or when they need to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease. The Company estimates the IBR using observable inputs
(such as market interest rates) when available..

h) Leases - Estimating the period of lease contracts with related parties

In case of lease contracts with related parties, there exist economic incentive for the Company to continue using the
leased premises for a period longer than the 11 months. The period of expecied lease in these cases is a matter of
estimation by the management. The estimate of lease period impacts the recognition of ROU asset, lease liability
and its impact of statement of profit and loss. The lease terms in the arrangements with related parties have been
determined considering the period for which management has an economic incentive to use the leased asset (i.e.
reasonably certain to use the asset for the said period of economic incentive). Such assessment of incremental period
is based on management assessment of various factors including the remaining useful life of the asset as on the date




of transition. The management has assessed period of arrangements with related parties as 8 to 9 years as at April
01, 2019.

i)  Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as lessee
The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered
by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to
terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies
judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate
the lease. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an cconomic incentive for it to exercise either the
rencwal or termination. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant
event or change in circumstances that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the
option to renew or to terminate.

§)  Estimation uncertainty relating to the global health pandemic on COVID-19

The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next year and the recoverability and
carrying value of its asscts comprising property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, right of use assets,
investments, inventory and trade receivables. Based on current indicators of future economic conditions, the
Company expects to recover the carrying amount of these assets.

The situation is changing rapidly giving rise to inherent uncertainty around the extent and timing of the potential
future impact of the COVID-19 which may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
standalone Ind AS statements.

The Company will continue to closely monitor any material changes arising of future economic conditions and
impact on its business.




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

5. Loans (at amortiscd cost)

Loans to employees
Unsecured, considered good

6. Other Financinl assets

Unseeured, considered goocd
{i) Derivative instruments at fir value

Mark to market gain on commodity lutures - Receivable from holding company

(ii) Other Financkal nssets (at amortised cost)
Security deposits

Interest accrucd on fixed deposits and others
Deposits with remaining maturity ol more than 12
manths*(Notel 1)

Total

Non-current

Current

Asat Asat
March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

1.4 4,54 £4.97 9.86
11.41 4.54 14.97 9.86
Non-curvent Current

As at Asat Asat As at

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

March 31,2025 March 31,2024

*Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months are held as margin money against the Bank Guarantee.

8. Other Current/Non Currvent nssets

Unsceured, consitered good
Batance with Statutory! Govemment Authorities
Capital advances
Contract Assets - Unbilled Revenue
Advance 1o employees apainst expenses
Advance to supplicrs
-Related Parties (Refer nole 31)
-Orihers
Export Incentive recoverable
Prepaid expenscs
Bank charges recoverable
Quality cliam Receivable
Total

9. Inventorics

- - 215.06 -
74.54 68.22 0.30 1.00
541 4.31 444 12.04
18.71 18.70 - -
98.66 91.23 219.80 13.94
Non-current Current
Asat Asal Asat Asat

March 31,2025 Mareh 31, 2024

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

Raw materials (Including Rs. 6,572.41 Lakhs (March 31, 2024: Rs. 2,809.94 lakhs) in transit) *,**.#

Finished poods
Stores and spares
Total

- - 147244 428.55
42.75 0.14 - -

- - 238.35 476.99

- - 3.52 2.64

- - 2917.58 6,118.54

- - 1,149.91 939.15

- - 10.18 66.84

5.1 0.23 16.12 I7.11

- - 0.39 0.37

- - - 33.88

47.86 0.37 5.808.50 8.084.17

Asat Asat

March 31, 2025  Mlarch 31, 2024

12,570.15 8,373.52

1,317.08 1,025.04

305.34 228.11

14,192.57 9,626.67

*In transit includes Rs.114.28 Lacs (Mar 31, 2024: Nil) from holding company, CMR Green Technologies Lid
*In transit includes Rs. 12.60 Lacs (Mar 31, 2024: Rs. Nil) from fellow subsidiary, CMR Aluminium Pvi Lid
** In¢lude stock of Rs 1,078 Lacs (Mar 31 2024:Nil) lying in extended warchouse of Job worker
# Fair value hedges are mininly used 1o hedge the exposure to change in fair value of commodity price risks. The fair value adjustment remains part of the camying value of

inventory and taken to profit and loss when the inventory is either sold or consumed.

The Company has extended fair value hedge accounting en its inventory which forms part of raw material during the year.




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Noles to financial statements for the year ended dMarceh 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupecs Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

7, Income tax
The major components of incone 1ax expense for the year ended 31s1 March, 2025 and 31st March, 2024 arg:
Statement of profit and loss:

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Tax Expense:
Current income 1ax charge 1,029.92 83727
Adjustments in respect of current income 1ax of previous period {3.03) {21.65)
Deferred tax:
Re?aung }o origination and reversal of 1emporary differences refating to 48.83 24 I8
carlier periods
Relating 19 onigination and reversal of 1emporary differences relating 1o (47.96) (360.79)
current period
Income tax expense veported in the statement of profit or loss 1,027.76 479.01
OCI section
Deferred tax related to items recognised in OCI during the perioid:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Deferred tax on net painsi{loss) on measurement of defined benefit plans (0.76) 10.65)
Deferred tax on net gains/(loss) in effective portion of cash flow hedge ) .
reserve
Income tax charged to OC1 (0.76) {0.65)
Reconciliation of tax expense and the nccounting profit multiplicd by India®s domestic tax rate for March 31, 2025, March 31, 2024,
As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Accounting profit before tax from continuing operations 3.828.92 1.827.06
Accounting profit before income tax 3,828.92 1,827.06
At India’s statutory income 1ax rate of 25.168% 963.66 459.83
Adjusiments o respect of current income tax ol previous periods (3.03) (21.65)
Deferred tax expense charged in current year due to change in rate - -
Deferred tax expense in relation to earlier years 48.83 24.18
Effect of expenditure not allowable under Income Tax Act, 1961 23.29 29.49
Others (5.00) (12.84)
At thie cffective income tax rvate of 25.168% (March 31, 2024: 9
277 479,
25.168%) 1.027.76 0
[neome tax expense reporied in the slatement of profit and loss 1,027.76 479.01
Deferred tax: Balance sheet Statement of profit and loss
As at As at Asat Asat
AMarch 31,2025  March 31, 2024 March 38, 2025 March 31, 2024
Delerred tax relates to the following:
Deferred tax (Liabilities)
Property, plant and equipment {631.63) (637.64) 6.01 {25.68)
43 b Liability (59.04) (59.04) (0.00) 377.01
Deferred tax Assets - -
Provision for employee benefits and preliminary expenses 29.60 2562 3.98 {1.09)
On unrealised portion of fanvard premium on derivalive contracls # (13.79 (2.1 (1.62) {14.26)
Total deferred tax assets/ (linbilities) (Nct) (671.86) {673.23) {1.63) 335.97
# Deferred 1ax asset on im: conumitment, inventory and derivative asset/liability has been disclosed on net basis.
Rellected in the balance sheet as follows:
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31,2024
Deferred 1ax assets 15.81 2345
Defemed 1ax linbility (690.67) {696.68)
Deferred tax asseis/ (linbilitics) (Net) {674.86) {673.23)
Reconceilintion of deferred tax iiabilitics (net):
Asat As at
Mlarch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening balance of (673.23) (1.609.21)
Tax income/ (expense) during the period recognised in profit or loss (0.87) 336.62
Tax income/ (expense) during the period recognised in QCI 10.76) (0.64)
Closing balance of deferred tax labilitles/ (asset) (Met) (674.86) {673.23)

The Company ofTsels tax assets and linbilities if and only il it has a legally enforceable right to sef off current tax assels and current tax liabilities and the deferred

tax assets and deferred 1ax liabililies relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Amaount in Rupees Lakhs, unfess otherwise stated)

10. Trade reccivables

Trade receivables

Asal

Asat

March 31,2025  March 31, 2024

-Related Panies (Refer note 31) 1,850.23 576.05
~Others 16,703.24 13,061.66
Total 18,553.47 13.637.71
Qutstanding for a period exceeding six months
from the date they are due for payment
Unsecured, considered good
“Qthers 27.68 4.24
27.68 4.24
Other receivables
Unsecured, considered pood
«Related Parties (Refer note 31) 1,850.23 576.05
~Ohhers 16,675.56 13,057.42
18,525.79 13,633.47
Total Trade reccivables 18.553.47 13,637.71
Notes:-
). For torms and conditions relating to related party receivables, refer Note 31
2. Trade receivables are gencrally non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 0 to 90 days
3. Entire trade receivables of the Company have been hypathecated/ morigaged to secure borrowings of the Comipany (refer note 13)
Trade Receivable ageing schedule:
As at piarch 31, 2025
. Cucrent but Outstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars not due Less than 6|6 Months- [ 1-2 Yenrs 2-3 Years More than 3 Total
Monihs Year Years
Undisputed Trade Receivables - considered grood 15,489.89 3.035.91 6.79 20.88 - - 18.553.47
Undispuied Trade Receivables — wiiich have
significant increase in credil risk ) ) B ) i )
Undisputed Trade receivable - eredit impaired - - - . - .
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have ?
signilicant increase in credit risk ) ) ) ) i )
Diisputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - - - - - -
Totnl 15,489.89 3.035.91 06.79 20.88 - - 18.553.47
As ot March 31, 2024
Quitstanding for the following periods from due date of payment
Particulars Current hut Less than 6 |6 Months- I Morethan
nat due 1-2 Years 2-3 Years Tolal
Months Year Yenrs
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered pood 12.824.35 809.12 3.10 1.13 - - 13,637.71
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have - - - . - N
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - . . . - R
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - which have - - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - credit impaired - . - - - -
Tatal 12,824.35 8092.12 3.10 1.13 - = 13,637.71
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Notes te financial statements for the year ended March 34, 2025
tAmount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwvise stated)

11. (i) Cash and cash cquivalcnts

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025  March 31, 2024

Cash on hand 1.52 1.47
Batances with banks:
- Currenl account 9.08 2383
~ Cash credit account 0.8 2.10
Totak 1141 640
ii) Other bank balance
Details of other bank balances is as follows:

Asat As at

March 31,2025 March 31, 2024

N - . .
,:?:;?,s;ﬁ“"h remaining maturity of less than 12 11131 102,41
Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12
months® 18.71 18.71
130.02 121.12
(l;gcsr:nli;iticlat;scd under Other financial assets (18.71) (18.71)
111.31 10241

*Deposits with remaining maturity of more than 12 months are held as margin money against the Bank Guarantee.

**Deposits with remaining malurity of less than 12 months Rs 6.32 Lacs (March 31,2024 Rs 4.41 Lacs} are held as margin money against the Letter of credit and Bank
Guarantees and Deposits with remaining maturity of less than 12 months of Rs 105.00 Lacs (March 31,2024: Rs 98.00 lacs) pertains to unspent amount on CSR deposited.

Note:-
Entire Cash and Cash equivalents and deposits wilh banks of the Company have been hypothecaled/imortgaged to secure borrowings of the Company {refer note 13)

For the purpose of the stafement of cash flow, cash and cash equivalents comprise of the following:

Asat As at
March 31,2025 Aarch 31, 2024

Cash on hand 1.52 1.47
Balances with banks:

= Current account 9,08 283
- Cash credit account 0.81 210
Total El.4]1 6.40




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Notes to Gnancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenvise stated)

12. Share Capital

Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Authoriscd shares

85,000,000 (March 31, 2024: 85,000,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 cach £.500.00 8500,00
Total Authorised Share Capital §,500.00 8.500.00
Issucd shares, subsceribed and fully paid -up shares

82972975 (March 31, 2024: 82,972 975) cquily sharcs of Rs. 10 each 8.297.30 §,297.30

§,297.30 8.297.30

{n} Reconciliation of no. of shares

Equity Shares

At the beginning of the year 8,2,72,975 8,29,72,975
Issued during the year - -
At the end of the year 8,20,72,975 8.29,72,975

(b) Terms/ rights attached to equity shares:
The Company has only one class of equity shares having par value o Rs 10 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 10 one vole per share and entilled to receive
dividends as declared [rom time to time.

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to reezive any of the remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
preferential anounts. The distribietion will be in proportion to the number of Equity Shares held by the Shareholders

{c } Details of sharcholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

As at March 31, 2025 As nt March 3], 2024
f the sharehold D P i
Name of the shereholder No. of shaves Yo ho_ldlng in the No. of shares %a ho_lding inthe
equily shares equity shares
CMR Green Technologies Limited 6,14,00,000 Td% 6,14,00,000 Td%
MNikkei MC Aluminium Co. Ltd 2,15,72.975 26% 2,15.72.975 26%
Total 8,29,72,915 100% 8,29.72,975 100%

() The Company has not issued any shares pursuant to any contract without payment being received in cash or as fully paid up by way of bonus shares. The
Company has not bought back any shares.

() Shares hetd by holding company

As at March 31, 2025 As at March 31, 2024
N T the shnreholl % i °
Nante of the sharcholder No. of shares Yo ho_ldlng in the No. of shares o holding in the
cquity shares cquity shares
CMR Green Technologies Limited 6,14,00,000 7% 6,14,00,000 T4%
(g) Delails of shares held by Promoters
As at March 31, 2025
No. of shares at the .
Promoter Name beginning of the Change during the No. of shares at she % of Total Sharcs
year year end of the year
CMR Green Technologies Limited 6,14,00,000 - 6,14,00,000.0 74%
Nikkei MC Aluminium Co. Ltd 2,15,72.975 - 2,15, 72.975.0 26%
As at March 31, 2024
No. of shares at the , .\
Promoter Name Leginning of the Change during the No. of shares at the % of Total Shares
year year entl of the year
CMR Green 'chhnologics Limited 6,14,00.000 - 6,14,00,000.0 74%
Nikkei MC Aluminium Co. Lid 2,15,72.975 - 2,15,72975.0 26%
12(l). Cther equity :
Ast Asat
Mprch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retained earnings:
Opening balance 19,636.26 18,286.27
Profit/{(Loss) for the year 2,801.17 1,348.05
Other comprehensive income for the year 227 1.93
Closing balance 22.439.69 19,6306.26

Retained earnings refer 10 net camings not paid out as dividends, but relained by the Company to be reinvested in its core business, This amoun is available for
distribution of dividends 10 its equity sharcholders.

Securities premium:

Opening kalance 4.6 114.6
Changes during the year - -

Closing balance 11.4.60 114.60
Total 22.554.29 19,750.86

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance of bonus shares in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
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CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in Rupees Lalkths, unless otherwise stated)

3. Property, Plant and Equipment

Particulars Frechold land Buildinps I’Ia'n: and Fumniture & Office Equipment Compu.mrs and (.]ma Yehicles Total Capital work in
cquipment fixtures pracessing mnchines pronress

Caost
As at March 31, 2023 1,625.26 3,725.19 7,780,08 39.61 104,73 4758 188.53 13,510.96 167.93
Additions - 19.09 31175 0.52 283 16.49 . 350.68
Disposals / adjustments - - (116.25) (5.13) (14.17) (135.54) (167.93)
Adjustments - - - - - - - . -
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.26 3.744.28 7,075.58 40.13 107.56 58.91 174,36 13,726.10 -
Additions - 5.51 64.60 1.54 0.27 33.30 105.22 472
Disposals - (357.12) {1.87) (8.90) (367.93) -
As at March 31, 2025 1,625.2 3.749.7% 7,683.06 40,13 109.10 57.31 198.72 13,163.39 4.72
Depreciation
As at March 31, 2023 - 680.39 2,865.47 21.83 58.38 3247 97.73 3,756.26 -
Charge for the year - 12221 614.74 17 17.09 2.34 16.53 784.17 -
Disposals 7 zdjustments - - (56.67) B - (4.34) (13.18) (T4.19) -
Adjustments - - - - - - - - -
Asat March 31, 2024 - 803.10 3,423.54 25.59 547 37.47 101.03 4,466.24 -
Charge for the year - 11590 576.55 3.53 9.76 9.30 18.06 733,10 -
hsposals - (245.74) {1.73) (8.50) (235.97) -
As at March 31, 2025 - 919.00 3,754.35 29,12 §5.23 45.04 110.64 4,943.37 -
Net block
As at March 31, 2024 1,625.26 294118 4,552.04 1454 32.10 21.44 73.29 5,259.85 -
As at March M, 2025 1,625.26 2,830,79 3,928.71 11.01 23.88 12,26 88.07 §,520.02 4.72

# The numbers reported are net (ndditions - deletions).
1) WCDL from HDFC bank and cash credit loan from SB! is secured by way of extension of charge over the fixed asscts exeept vehicles specifically hypothecated against vehicle loans of Bawal plant, including equitable mortpage of factory
land & building at Plot No. 65, Sector 15, Bawal Industrial Area, Bawal, {laryana.




CMR Nikket Indin Private Limited
Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

4, Intangible Asscts

Pardiculars Computer Software
Gross block
As at March 31, 2024 57.713
Additions -
Disposals 0.56
As at March 31, 2025 57.17
Amarlisation
As at March 31, 2024 57,10
Charge for the vear 0,20
Disposals (0.52)
As at March 31, 2025 56.78
Net hlock
As at March 31, 2024 0.63
As at March 31, 2025 0.39

Capital Work in Progress apeing schedule

As at March 31, 2025 Amount {Rs in Lacs)
Amaount of CWIP for a period of Total
Less than [ Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years
Proicct in progress 4.72 - - - 4,72
Projects temporarily suspended - - b a =
Total 4.72 - - - 4.72
As at March 31, 2024 Amount {Rs in Lacs}
Amount of CWIP for 2 period of Tatal
Less than [ Year 1-2 Years 2-3 Years More than 3
Years
Project in proyress - - - - -
Projccts temporarily suspended - - - - -
Total - - - - -
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Notes to financia) statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

13. Borrowings
Details of borrowings are as follows:
Non-current Current
Asat As at Asat As at
Maorch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

From Banks
Sccured

Working capital loan - - 1,583.35 702.30
Cash credit - - 1,940,38 3.07
Unsecured

Working capital loan - - 2,500.00 2,500.00
Total - - 6,023.73 3,205.37
The above amount includes

Secured borrowing - - 3,523.73 705.37
Unsecured borrowing 2.500.00 2.500.00
Net amount - - 6.023.73 3,205.37
Current Borrowings
The security and rate of interest of the above loans are as piven belows

Loan Lean Amtount in Rs. Lakhs Rate of Interest Repayment terms Security

during the vear

Cash credit {secured)

Statc Bank of India

March 31, 2025 - Rs 1800.42
Lacs
March 31, 2024 - Nil

8.60% - 10.20%

Repayable on demand

Refer Note 1 below

Axis Bank

March 31, 2025 - Rs 140 Lacs
March 31, 2024 - Rs 3.07 Lacs

9.50%

Repayable on demand

Refer Noie 1 below

Working eapital demand loans-Indian Rupees (secureil)

Axis Bank

March 31, 2025 - Rs 1483.39
Lacs
March 31, 2024 - Rs 700.00 Lacs

§.00%-10.50%

For a period not
exceeding 3 months
from drawdown date

Refer Note 1 below

HDFC Bank

March 31, 2025 - Rs 99.92 lac
Marel 31, 2024 - Rs 2.30 Lacs

7.98% - 9.45%

For a period not
exceeding 3 months
from drawdown date

Refer Note 1 below

{Unsecured)

Working capital dentand loans-Indian Rupees

CTBC Bank

March 31, 2025 - Rs 2500.00
Lacs
March 31, 2024 - Rs 2500.00
Laes

7.55% - 7.65%

For a period not
cxceeding 3 months
fram drawdown date

Reler Note 2 below

Nature of Security

1} State Bank of India 7/ HDFC Dank / Axis Bank : -

) Primary: Working Capital facilitics is secured by first charge on the entire current assets on pari -passu basis of the company with other working capital lenders
both present & future, including hypothecation of all types of stocks of raw malerial, stares, spares, stock-in-process, finished goods, etc. lying in factory, godowns,

clsewhere {including goods in transit) and company's receivables/ Book debt. Hypothecation of Stock & Receivables

b) Collaterals: First Charge on pari passu basis over the fixcd assets of the company (present and future) including Equitable Mortgage of factory Land & Building at

Plot No. 65, Sector-15, Bawal-123501, Haryana.

2) CTBC Bank : -

a) The facilities sanctioned by CTBC Bank are unsecured. CTBC bank has sanctioned bill discounting facilities as main limil amounting to 2500 lacs. The company
has utilised 2500 tacs WCDL facilitics which is the sub limit 1o main limit.




CMR Nikkei India Private Limited

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,
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14. Provisions

Proviston for employee benelits
Provision for leave encashment
Provision for graluily

15, Other current/non current liabilities

Sttutory dues

interest on income fax

Advance from Customers

Liability towards Corporate Social Responsibility

Firm commitment for purchase of inventory ef mw materials

2025

Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat As at
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024  March 31,2025  March 31, 2024
- - 41.97 34.36
63.94 56.74 §3.10 10.10
63.94 56,74 53.07 44.46
Non-current Current
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 Narch 31,2025 March 31,2024
- - 348.63 73.87
- - 156 15.32
- - 31.20 6.80
- - 189.46 203.98
- - 94.85 -
- - 667.70 209.97

o =
-:{;_‘r:‘"grs ST
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CMR Nikkei India Private Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

16. Trade payables {at amortised cost)

Details of trade payables is as follows:
Current
Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Trade payables
Dues to micro and small enterprises 44.13 134.70
Dues 1o others
<Related Parties (Refer Note 31) 6,751.32 5,330.29
-Others 2.449.59 3.041.88
Tatal 9.245.04 8.506,87
Terms and conditions of the above financial labilities:
2a) Trade payables (other than relaled partics) are non-interest bearing and are nonnally settled on 0-60 days lerms
b} For terms and conditions wilh related parties, refer note 31
¢) For explanations on the Company's credit risk management processes, refer 1o Note 35
As at March 31, 2025
Particulars Less than @ Year| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Years Mu{,i:::n 3 Total
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 44. I37 - - - 44.13
Total c{utslnndmg dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 432961 4.635.08 234.74 1.48 920091
enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - . -
Disputed dues ol ereditors viher than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 4.373.74 4.635.08 234.74 1.48 9.245.04
As at March 31, 2024
Particulars Less than § Year| 1-2 Years | 2-3 Vears '“"“',:'r’:“ 3 Total
Total oulstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 134.70 - - - 134.70
Total qulslnndlng dues of credilors other than micro enterprises and small 231454 34.56 21.62 145 837217
enlerprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - B -
Disputed dues ol creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - - - -
Total 8,449.24 34.56 21.62 145 8,506.87
17. Other financtal liabilities
a) Detalls of other financial linbilities carcied is as follows:
Current
Asat Asat
March 31,2025 March 31, 2024
(1) Derivative instruments at falr value throvugh profit or loss:
Mark to market loss en commodity fulures- Payable 1o helding company . 81.66
{ii} Other Anancial liabilities (at amortised cost)
Security deposits 1.92 1.93
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 3.31 1.04
Employee related payables 69.18 53.00
Creditors for capilal expenditure 36.52 94.63
110.93 232.26
b} Breakup of Minancial labilities at gmortised cost:
Asal As nt
March 31,2025 March 31,2024
Borrowings (Refer 10 note 13) 6,023.73 3,205.38
Trade payables (Refer 1o nole 16) 9,245.04 8.506.88
Other financial liabilities 110.94 232.25
15379.71 11,944.51
18. Current tax liabilities (net)
Asat Asat
Manrch 31, 20258 March 31, 2024
Provision for taxation (net) 73.04 209.33
72.04 209.33
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
(Amtount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

19, Revenue from operations

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 MMarch 31, 2024

Revenuc from operations

Sale of Products

Manufactured goods 1,57.862.04 1,34.886.22
Traded goods 27.320.58 5,095.52
Qther operating revenuc:

Sale of services* 22145 -
Sale of Scrap and others** 42,419.60 46,925.99
Export Incentive 107.85 372.34
Total revenue from operntions 2,27.931.52 1,87.280.05
ta) Timing of revenue recognition

Preducts transferred at a point in time 2,27,602.22 1,86,907.72
Services rendered at a point in time 221.45 -
Total 2,27.823.67 1,86,907.72
(1) Reconciliztion of amount of revenue recognised with contract price

Reverue as per contracled price 2.27.710.07 1,87,280.06

Performance Obligation

The Company recognises revenue from sale of goods af the point in 1ime when control of the goods is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery
of the goods. The performance obligation is satisficd upon delivery of the goods and payment is generally due within 0 to 90 days from delivery.

* Sale of services was in the nature of job works executed.
** Sale of scrap and ather is in the nature of segregated scrap, ash and residue sales.

20, Other income

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31,2024
Interest on fixed deposits 12.63 1.75
Interest on receivables and others 24.53 6.80
Liability towards custonyvstamp duty wrilten back - 10.54
Interest on balances of related parnties (Refer to Note 31) 469.47 606.84
Miscellancous income B 0.96
Management Support Sepvices B 68.50
Forward premium on realised and unrealised commodity contracts 331.25 54.74
Unrealised gain on comumodity luture contracis (ned) 54.80 8.64
Exchange fluctuation {nct) 106.20 153.09
Total 998.88 911.87
21. Cost of material consumed
The details of cost of materia) consumedl is as follows:
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Raw malterials:
Opening stack 8,373.51 11,822.30
Add: Purchases during the period 1,90.511.61 1,66,529.55
Less: Closing stack (12.570.14) (8.373.51)
Total 1,86,314.98 1,69,978,34
22. Purchase of Stock in Trade
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Purchase of iraded poods 27.281.77 4,864.54
27,281.77 4,864.54
23, Change in inventory of work in progress and finished goods
For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening stock:
Finished goods 1,025.04 1,367.67
Less: Closing stock:
Finished poods 1,317.08 1.025.04
Total {292.04) 342.63
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{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unttess othenvise stated)

34, Employee benefits expense

Salarics, wages and bonus

Contribulion to provident and other funds
Gratuity

Staff welfare expenses

Disclosure in compliance with Ind AS-19 an Employze Benelits has been given in Note 32

25, Finance cost

Interest on rupee term loans & others
- On borvowings and others
- On Income Tix

- Interest on balances of related partics (Refer to Note 31)

Other finance casts

26. Depreciation and amortization expense

Depreciation of tangitie assels (Refer to note 3)
Amortization of intangible assets {Refer 1o nate 4)

7, Other expenses

Pawer & fuel

Rent paid

Insurance charges

Rates and taxes

Repair and maintenance of:

= Plant and equipment

- Buildings

- Others

Printing and stalionery

Loss on disposal of property, plant & equipment (net)
Advertisement, publicity and sales promotion
Travelling and conveyance expenses

Payment 1o staiutory auditor {(Refer details below)
Vehicle running and maintenance

Freight and cartage outward

Commission on currency and commaedily derivalives
Legal and professional expenses

Stores & spares consumed

Packing material consumed

Management support fees

Bank charges

Sundry balance write off (net)

Director sitting fees

Corporate Social Responsibility

Communicalion expenses

Miscellaneous expenses

Detuils of payment made to auditors is as follows:

As auditor:

- Sialtory audit fec
- Tax audit fee
Totzl

For the year eadded For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1.820.91 1,69292
37.70 35.14
14.56 12.72
12197 164.12
1.995.14 1.904.90
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
540.73 730.08
791 15.32
22.10 137.35
20.22 13.54
590.96 896.29
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
733.10 784.18
0.20 0.24
733.30 78442
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
4,839.53 4,204.41
220.71 188.79
5115 53.54
19.56 41.53
542.31 310.79
6.65 2465
0.27 12.28
1.74 7.19
4.2 0.62
043 047
69.83 64.77
4.62 495
20.79 6.18
728.82 814.67
121.15 44.24
56.18 46.13
205.30 308.60
66.85 93.85
1,214.15 1,153.90
6.57 12.52
1.22 2211
225 1.75
84.65 101.85
8.26 9.15
90.16 64.81
8.477.37 7,593.75
For the year ended For the year ended
Mavch 31, 2025 Marech 31, 2024
4.62 4.20
- 0.75
41.62 495




CMR Nikiked India Peivate Limited
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28. Components of other Comprehensive Incame

The disapgregation of changes to OCI by each 1ype of reserve in equity is shown below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plans 3.03 2.58
Income tax effect {0.76) (0.65}
2,26 1.93

29, Earnings per share (EFP'S)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year atiributable to equity holders of the company by the weighled average number of
equily shares outstanding during 1he year.

Diluted EPS amounts arc calculated by dividing (he profit aiributable to equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential
equity shares into equity shares.

The lollowing reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

March 31, 2025 Mareh 31, 2024
Profit atiributable to the equity holders 2,500.17 1,348.05
Weighted average number of equily shares for basic and diluted EPS 8,26,72975 8,29,72,975
Basic and diluted carnings per share (Face value INR 10 per share)* 338 1.62
*There is no convenible share henee, diluted ERS is equal 1o basic EPS
Weiphted average of equity shares
No of shares No of shares
Opening Eguity Shares 8.29 72975 §.29,72.975

8.29,72.975 8,20,72.07%
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30. Commitment and Contingencles

A, Capital and Other Commitments

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of contracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capital account and
not provided for

131.45

5.25

B. Contingent liabilities

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

Asat
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

- Dernand raised under section 69 C of Income Tax Act for A.Y. 2015-16, and the company has paid
Rs 67.50 Lakhs as 20% of the total demand under protest which Is appearing under the head
“Balance with statutory/ government authorities” in "Other Current Assets" in Note 8 to the
Financial Statements.The Company is in appeal before CIT Appeals.

337.30

337.30

- Demand raised {Including interest} under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual € form for AY. 15-16 and proceedings pending before The Assistant collector (Excise &
Taxation}, Rewari, Haryana

- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 16-17 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation
Commissioner (A), Faridabad, Haryana { CST Rs. 32.41 Lakhs+ VAT Rs. 2.04 Lakhs)

- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of
manual C form for A.Y. 17-18 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation
Commissioner (A), Faridabad, Haryana ( CST Rs. 2.44 Lakhs + VAT Rs.1.67 Lakhs)

- Demands (including interest) raised on account of non payment / short payment of service tax
under reverse charge and proceedings pending before CESTAT, Haryana

1.43

1.43

010 Order in Form GST DRC - 07 Issued vide Ref No, ZD2410220032954 dated 04/10/2022. issue
regarding High utilization ITC 3B VS 2A diff for the pericd april 2019 to Mar 2020u/s 73 CGST ACT
and Rules 2017 Appeal filed to Appellate Authority Dy. commisioner Rajkot

68.35

68.35

010 Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD240723035155N dated 25/07/2023. issue
regarding GSTR 1 Vs GSTR 3B diff. ,Ineligible 1TC, Diff in EWay Bill Vs GSTR 3B for the period april
2020 to Mar 2021 u/fs 73 CGST ACT and Rules 2017

93.56

93.56

0I0 Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD060225028528F dated 20/02/2025. Liability
under section 73(5) of the CGST Act against the taxability of secondment of employees from
overseas group entities as recipients of manpower supply for FY 2020-21

6.99

OO Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD0602250069298 dated 04-02-2025.
Incorrect availing of Input Tax Credit (iTC} due to a non-existent supplier under section 74 of the
CGST Act.

1.77

Wrong availment of cenvat credit in TRANS-1 , Case proceeding reference INDT/SSCA/TC/2021-
22/DIV -REWARI /FBD.244 DATED 28/07/2021

-Company has received the demand for enhancement of land value from HSIDC. Company has filed
a writ petition before the Punjab and Haryana High court against the demand notice

137.00

137.00

-others

0.40

0.40

C. Guarantees

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars

As at
March 31, 2025

As at
March 31, 2024

Bank guaranteeas issued by bank

87.68

87.68

Total

87.68

87.68
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30. Commitment and Contingencics

A. Capital and Other Commitments

(Amount in Rs, Lakhs)

Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Estimated amount of coniracts (net of advances) remaining to be executed on capilal account and not provided 131.45 .
for '

B. Contingent liabilitics

{Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
' Mareh 31, 20258 March 31, 2024

- Demand raised under section 69 C of Income Tax Act for A.Y. 2015-16, and the company has paid Rs 67.50
Lakhs as 20% of the total demand under protest which is appearing under the head "Balance with statutory/
govemment autherilies” in "Other Current Assets” in Note 8 to the Financial Statemenis. The Company is in 337.30 337.30
appeal before CIT Appeals.

- Demand raised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verilication of manual C form )
for A.Y. 15-16 and proceedings pending before The Assistant collector {Excise & Taxation), Rewari, Haryana
- Demand raised (including interest} under Sale Tax/ VAT subject 1o genuineness verification of manual C form
for A.Y. 16-17 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation Commissioner (A), Faridzbad, - -
Harvana { CST Rs. 32.41 Lakhs+ VAT Rs. 2.04 Lakhs)

- Demand mised (including interest) under Sale Tax/ VAT subject to genuineness verification of manual C form
for AY. 17-18 and proceedings pending before The JT. Excise & Taxation Commissioner (A), Faridabad, - -
Haryana ( CST Rs. 2.44 Lakhs + VAT Rs.1.67 Lakhs)

- Demands (including interest) raised on account of non payment / short payment of service tax under reverse 143 1.43
charpe and proceedings pending before CESTAT, Harvana ) )
Q010 Order in Form GST DRC - 07 issued vide Ref No. ZD2410220032954 dated 04/10/2022. issue regarding
High utilization ITC 3B VS 2A dilT for the period april 2019 10 Mar 2020 and april 2020 1o March 2021 10 w/s 170.66 161.91
73 CGST ACT and Rules 2017 Appeal filed to Appellate Authority Dy. commisioner Rajkot
Wrong availment of cenvat credit in TRANS-1 | Case proceeding reference INDT/SSCA/TCR2021-22/D1V -

REWARI /FBD.244 DATED 28/07/2021 ) °
-Company has reccived the demand for enhancement of land value from HSIDC. Company has filed a wril 137.00 137.00
petition before the Punjab and Haryana High court agzinst the demand notice ' ’

|-others 0.40] 0.40
C. Guarantees (Amount in Rs. Lakhs)
. Asat As at
|
Particulars March 31,2025 | March 31,2024

Bank puarantees issued by bank 87.68 87.68

Total 37.68 87.63

S -
O Acct
Rmx .
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31. Refated Party Transactions

In accordance with the requirements of IND AS -24 *Related Party Disclosures’ , names of the related partics, related party relationship,
transactions and outstanding balances where control exists and with whom transactions have taken place during the period are:

Names of related parties and related party relationship
(A} Key management personnel and their relatives

Mr. Mohan Agarwal - Managing Director
M. Eiji Wakai - Director
Mr. Satish Kaushik - Chief Financial Officer
Ms. Sonam Garg - Company Secretary {Resigoed w.e.16-06-2024]
Ms. Suman Bala - Director [Resigned w.e.f 21,09.2023]
Mr. Balvinder Kumar appointed w.e.f. 30.09.2021
Ms, Ridhima Bagla jw.ef 11-10-2023)
Ms. Ayushi Agrawal- Company Secrctary [Appointed w.e.f. 24.09.2024]

(b} Holding Company and Fellow Subsidiaries
(i) Holding Compuany:-
CMR Green Technologies Limited

(i1) Fellow Subsidiaries and Assosciates (Subsidiary of Holding Company):-
CMR Toyotsu Aluminium India Private Limited
CMR-Kataria Recyeling Private Limited {disinvestmenl w.e.f 01.07.2024)
CMR Aluminium Private Limited
CMR Welfare foundation
CMR Eco Aluminium Pyt Ltd
Nikkei CMR Atuminum Private Limited
CMR Green LLC- (w.¢.f. 02.08.2023)

() Joint Venture Partner
Nikkei MC Aluminium Company Limiled

(d) Enterprises awned or significantly influenced by key management personnel and their relatives
Sanjivani Metal Trading Pvt. Lid
CMR-Chilo Recyeling Techn. Private Limited
CMR Chiho Industries India Private Limiled
KRGS Partners LLP
KGS Partners
G5K Partners

e, ar
Sl ed Aect
TRz -
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Nates o financial siatements for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

{if) The following table provides the total vatue of transacuons that have been entered into wath related partees for the relevant financial year:

fAmount in Hs. Lakhs)

Fellow Subsidiaries, joint venture partner,

CMR Eco Alumaniom Prvate limited

felding enterprizes under same conlrol, other related
Paeticulars entities
For the year ended | For the year ended For the year ended For the year ended
March 31. 2025 March 31,2024 March 31,2025 Marcl: 31,2024

‘Transactions during the year:

Sale of goods

CMR Green Technolegies Linuted 45,54228 4093716 - -
CMR - Toyotsu Alumaium Indsa Pravate Limied - - 1,585 34 1,13907
CMR Alumioum India Pyt Ltd . . 287201 845331
Nikkei CMR Aluminium India Private limited - . - 1.98
Nikkei MC Alomnium Company Limited - - 2199 54 15.049.76
Sale of store items

CMR Green Tecknologies Limated 713 745 - -
CMR ECO ALUMINIUM PRIVATE LTD . - 0.19 0.01
CMR Alummium Indi Py Lid . - FAL 591
CMR - Tovotsu Al Indis Private Limied - . 4.45 025
Sale of Property. Plant & Equipment

CMR Gicen Technologics Limated 046 858 - -
CMR Alumizium India Pvi Ltd - - 5295 -
CMR ECO ALUMINIUM PRIVATE LTD - - - 43.49
CMR - Toyoisu Alami Indaa Pravate Limeted - - - 0.46
Purchase of poods

CMR Green Techrologees Laimited 7561433 60,655 91 - -
CMR ECO ALUMINIUM PRIVATE LTD - . 50396 -
CMR Aluwsumiem India Py Lid - - 41,438 40 24.143 81
Sanisvans Metal Tradtng vt Led - - - 1.15993
CMR - Tovotsu Al India Pryvate Lamited - - 652 06 534.76
Job Work Clianges

CMR A m Inde Pat Lid - . 152.08 1.886.46
Purchase of store ilems

CMR Green Technelogies Lumited 77 442 - -
CMR Alurinium India P Lid - - 283 462
CMR - Tovorsu Alumintum India Private Limited - - 340 7.00
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment

CMR Green Teehnelogies Limited 19494 425 - -
CMR - Toyotsu Aluminium Iadia Private Limited - - 300 .
CMR Alumimom India Pyt Lid - - - 476
Expense made by Others an behall of Us

CMR Green Technolopes Py Lid Jzo 30894 - .
CMR Aluminigm lodiy Pyve Lid . - - 154
CMR - Tovorsu Al India Private Limited - - 731 0.04
Expense made by Us on behalf of others

CMR Green Technologies Limated . 163 86 - -
CMR - Teyoisu Aluminium India Pravate Limsted . - - 007
CMR Al Inday Pat Ltd - - 60.72 127357
Interest paid

CMR Alwsinaum Indsa Pyt Lid - - 1773 13735
CMR Eco Aluminium Prvate imited - - 4.36 -
Interest Received

CMR - Toyotsu Alunnium Indu Private Limnted B - 6165 169.0%
CMR Green Technologies Linuted 402.82 43487 . .
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(Amount in s, Lakhs)

Particulars

liolding

entities

Fellow Subsidiaries, joint venture parizcr,
enterprises uniter same control, other related

For the year ¢nded
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
Alarch 31,2024

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Management support lccs
CMR Green Technologies Limited

121415

1,153.90

Commodity & Deriatives (Gain/tLoss)
CMR Green Technolowies Limited

218594

51586

|Manspement Support Services
Nikkei CMR Alumintum Prvate Lymited

6B.50

CSR
CMR Welfase Foundatton

105.50

$3.17

Reruneration paid
Sonam Garg
Avuthi Aerawal

147

Sitling Fees
Balvinder Kumar

175

* Net of increase / {decrease) during the year

{lii) Balances s at the period end

{Amouni in Rs. Lakhs)

Particulars.

Flelding

Fellow Subsidiaries/ foint venture
partner/Controlling Entilies

Asal
Mareh 31,2025

Trade payables

CMR-Chiho Industries India Pvi. Ltd
CMR-Chiho Recychng Techn PvLid

CMR Aleminium Private Limited

Sanjivam Memnd Treding P Ltd

CAIR - Toyotsu Aleminium India Private Limined
CMR Eco Al Private limited

Asat
March 31, 2024

Asat
March 31, 2025

Asnl
March 31, 2024

198 39
335
1.818.27
460794
003
123.36

168.39
338
55061
460794

Advance 10 Suppliers
CMR Green Technologwes Lamiied

291758

6.118.54

Payable to holding company on account of oulstanding derivative
[conteacts
CMR Green Technoloates Limued

81.65%

‘Trade Receivables

CMR - Teyotsu Aluminaum india Private Limited
Nikket CMR Aluminium

CMR Eco Aluminium Prvate imiuted

1.347.89
233

34820
22355
33

Receivable from holding company on account of outstanding
derivative contracis
CMR Green Technaloutes Limited

21508

Emnployee Related Liakilities
Avishi Agrawal

038

Notes:-

(1) No amount has been watten off o writtens back i the peniod in respect of debts due from! to above related parties

Ternts and conditions of isansactions with related parties

Nales:

The sale and purchase from related pantits are made on terms equivalent 1o these that prevail in arm's length
d for any related party receivables or payables For the year ended March 31, 2024, the Company has not

unsccured. There have been no g

provided or

recorded any impairment of receivables relating 10 amounts owed by related parties. This assessment in undertaken each fi

position of the related pariy and (¢ marked in whneh the relared pany aperates

o ding bat

21 the year end ate

the [t ial

ial year
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32, Employee benefits

Defined Contribution Plans - General Description

Provident Fund:

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund/ pension fund. Under the scheme, the Company is required to contribute a speeified percentage of payroll eost,
as specified in the reles of the schemes, o the defined coniribution scheme.

Paticul For the year ended For the year ended
arfieufars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Employers contribution to Provident fund 26.22 3310
{intluding Employee's Pension Scheme 1995)* T
Tota) 36.22 33.10

* Net off benefit of Rs. Nil (March 31, 2024: Rs Nil lakhs) received under Pradhan Mantri Rojgar Prosihan Yojna,

Defined Benefit Plans - General Description

Gratuity:

The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Under the Act, employees who have completed five years of service are entilled to specific benefit.
The level of benefit provided depends on the member's lenpth of service and salary retirement age. The employee is entitled to a benefit equivalent to 15 days salary last
drawn for cach compleled year of service with part thereof in excess of six months. The same is payable on lermination of service or retirement or death, whichever is
carlier.

The present value of the obligation under sueh defined benefit plan is determined basce on an actuarial valuation as at the reporting date using the projected unit credit
method, which recognises each period of service as giving rise lo additional unit of employee bencfit entitlement ard measures each unit separately to build vp the final
obtigation. The cbligations are measured al the present value of the estimated fulure cash flows. The discount mte used for determining the present value of the obligation
under defined benefit plans is based on the markel yields on Government bonds as at the date of actuarial valuation. Acluarial gains and losses (net of tax) are recognised
immediately in the Other Comprehensive Income (OCH.

The following tables summarise the components of net beneflt expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss and amounts recognised in the balance sheet for the
graity plan:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Gratuity Gratuity]
(Unfunded) {Unfunded)
Change in bencefit obligation
Present value of obligation as at the beginning of the year 66.85 59.28
Acquisitien adjustmiznt - -
Current service cost 6.19 8.36
Add: Past service cost - -
Add: [nlerest cost 8.37 4.36
Add: Acluarial {gain) / loss {4.92) (2.5R)
Less: Benefits paid (1.45) (2.58)
Present value of obligation as at the end of the period 75.04 66.85
Liabitity/ (Asset) recogsized in the Bnancial statements 75.04 66.85
Amount recognised in Statement of Prefit and Loss:
Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 21124
Current service cost 6.19 8.36
Interest cost on benefit obligation 837 4.36
Amount recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss 14.56 12.72




Amount recoguised in Other Comprehensive Income:

Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumplions

Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Amount of loss recognised in Other Comprehensive Income

Maurch 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
225 094
(5.28) (3.52)
{3.03) (2.58)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity linbility for the Company’s plans are shown below:

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Discount rate (%) 6.93 7.23
Expected rate of relurn on Plan assets (%)
Fulure salary increases (%) 5.50 5.50
Retircment Age [ Years) 60 60
Withdrawa) rote
Up to 30 vears 3% 3%
From 31 to 44 vears 2% 2%
Above 44 vears 1% 1%
Mortality table 100% of [ALM (2012-14)

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption is as shown below:

Gratuity Plan

Assumptions
Discoum rate

Impact an defined bencfit obligation
Gratuity Plan

Assumptions
Discount rate

impact on defined benefi obligation

The sensitivity analyses above has been determined based on the method (at extrapolates the iny

assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

March 31, 2025

March 31, 2025

Discount rate

Future salary

0.5% increasce

0.5% Decrease

0.5% Increase 0.5% Decrense

(3.81)

4.15

4.19 (3.87)

March

3L, 2024

March 31, 2024

Discount rate

Future salary increase

0.5% increase

0.5% Decreasc

0.5% Encrense 0.5% Decrease

360

395

4.00 (3.68)

pact on defined benefit obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of change not calculated. Sensitivities as 1o rate of inflation, rate of increase of pensions in
paymens, rate of increase of pensions before retirement & lifi: expectancy are not applicable being a lump sum benefit on retirement.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period)

Between 1 and 2 years
Between 2 and 3 years
Between 3 and 4 years
Belween 4 and 5 years
Between 5 and 6 years
Beyond 6 years

Total expected payments

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Rs. Rs.
11.10 10.10
3.29 2.76
104 0.97
1.07 0.96
1.06 0.97
3.16 0,92
54.33 50.16
75.04 06.54

The average duration of the defined benelit plan olligation at the end of the reporting period is 20.12 years
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33. Fair values
Set out below, is a comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of the company’s financial instruments, other Lhan those with carrying,
amounts that are reasonable approximations of fair values.

Carrying value Fair valuc
Asat Asat Asat Asat
March 30,2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Financinl assels

A. Amortised Cost:

Security deposits 74.84 69.22 74.84 69.22
Non current fixed deposits 98.66 91.23 98.66 91.23
Total 173.50 16045 173.50 160.45

Financinl liabilities

Derivative liabilities - 81.66 - 81.66
- BL66 - 81.66

A, Amortised Cost:

Borrowings - - - .

The management assessed that trade receivables, capital creditors, trade payables and other financial assets and liabilities {except derivatives and
liabilities) approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturitics of these instruments.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fir vatues :-

Derivative finoncial instruments -

The fair value of foreipn exchange forward contracts is determined using the foreign exchange spot and forward rates at the balance sheet date.
The derivatives are entered into with the banks / counterparties with investmem grade credit ratings.

Borrowings:-

The fair vatues of the Company™s interest bearing borrowings are determined by using discounted cash Mfow (DCF) method using discount rate that
reflects the issuer’s borrowing mate as at the end of the reporting period.

Investments, loan to employees, security deposits and Interest accrued on fixed deposits:-
The fair value of investment in ollier cquity instruments, loan to employees, security deposit and interest accrued on fixed deposits approximates the
carrying value and hence, the valualien technique and inputs have not been given.
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35, Fingncigl risk manapgement objectives and pelicies

The Company's principal financtial ligbilities comprises of rade payables, derivative liability, financial guarantec, security deposits received, Fapiml crf:dhors and cmployc‘c
related payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is 1o finance the Company®s operations and to provide puarantees 10 support its operations. Tl_n: Cnmpany s
principal financial assets include trade and other receivables, and cash and cash equivalent that derive directly from ils operations. The Company also enlers into derivative
transaclions.

The Company is exposed 1o market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's senior management oversees the management of these risks. 'I.'he Fompnn:v‘s anior
management is responsible to ensure that Company’s financial risk activities which are governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that ﬁnancna! risks are 1dcnl:_ﬁc_d,
measured and managed in accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. All derivative activities for risk management purposes are earried out by specialist
teams that have the appropriate skills, experience and supervision. It is the Company”s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes may be undenaken. The
Board of Directors reviews and agrees policics for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below,

Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of fusure cash flows of 2 financial instrument will Muctuate because of change in marken price. Market risk comprise of interest rale

risk, currency risk, credit risk and commodity risk.

The sensitivity analysis in the following sections relate to (he position as at March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024

{n) Interest rate visk

Inierest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial insirument will Nuctuate because of clianges in market interest rates. There in no impact on
Company’s profit before tax due floating rale borrowings, as no foreign currency bomowing exists ai the balance sheet date.

Fair value sensitivity unalysis for fixed rate instruments :-

The Company has not disclosed interest rate risks on any fixed rate financial Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss. Therefore, a change in interest rates a1 the
reporting date would neither affect profit or loss ner affect equity.

{b) Forclgn currency risk

The Company is cxpesed to foreign exchange risk arising from lorcign curreney iransactions primarily with respect to USD and CNY. Foreign exchange risk arises from
fulure commercinl transactions and recognised asset and liabilities denominated in a currency (hat is not the Company's functional currency. The Company imporls raw
materials which exposes it to foreipn currency risk. The Company holds derivative foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate the risk of chanpe in exchange rate on
foreign currency exposure. The following tables demonsirate the sensitivity 10 & reasonably possible change in USD and CNY cxchange rates, with all other varigbles held
constant. The impact on the Company's profit before tax is duc to changes in the fair value of monctary assets and liabilitics.

Below is the Company's exposure 1o foreign currency risk chanpes

Change in USD & CNY  Effect on profit before

rate tax
March 31, 2025
UsD +5%% (71.03)
uspD -5% 7803
CNY +5% (0.2d)
CNY -5% 0.24
March 31, 2024
UsD +5% (9.32)
USD -5% 9.32
CNY +5% (0.51)
CNY -5% 0.51

(¢ ) Commaouity price risk

The operating activities of the Company require the ongoing purchase of aluminium and scrap. The purchase price of the atuminium scrap depends on the global inctal
market. However, Contpany is not exposed to commodily price risk as any change in the price of commodity is subsequently recovered by the Campany from its customers,
thus safeguarding itself from any fuctuation in the price of commodity.

(d} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meel its obl igations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading 10 a financial logs. The Company is exposed to
credit risk from its operating activities (primarily eade reccivables) and from its financing activitics, including deposils with banks. Management has a eredit policy in place
and the exposure to credit risk is monitored on an ongoing basis. Credit evaluations are performed on o)l customers requiring credit over a certain amount.

{i) Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed as per the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quality of a customer is
assessed based on an extensive credit rating scorecard and individual credit limits are defined in accordance with this assessment. Quistanding customer receivables are
regularly monitored.

An impaimient analysis is performed at cach reperting date on an individual basis for niajor clients. The calculation is based on exchange losses historical data. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reparting date is the camying value of each class of financial assets disclosed below. The Company does not hold collaternl as security, The
Contpany cvaluates the concentration of risk wilh respect Lo trade receivables as low on the basis of past defuwlt rates of its customers.

The ageing of trade receivabies ot the reporting date was:

Particulars As at Asat
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
0- 180 days 18,525.79 13,633.47
Above 180 davs 4.23




(1i) Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company’s treasury department in accordance with the Company's policy. Investinents of surplus fupds are made
only with approved counterpartics and within credit limits assigned to each counterparty. Counterparty credit limits are reviewed by the Company's Board of Directors on an
annual basis. The limits are set to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial loss through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments.

The Company’s maximum exposuse to credit risk for the compenents of the Balance Sheet:

. Asat
Particulars March 31, 2025
Interest accrued but not recejved 4.44
Non current fixed deposits 18.71
Security depesits (curent & non current) 74.84
Loan to employees 26.38
Trade receivables 18,553.47

Liguidity risk
The Company monitors its risk of a shortage of funds deing a liquidily planning exercisc.

The Company's objective is to maintain a balance between conlinuity of funding and Nexibility through the use of short term borrowing facilities like bank overdraft, cash
credit facility and buyers credit facility. The Company's treasury function reviews the liquidity position on an ongoing basis. The Company assessed the coneentration of risk
with respect to refinancing its debt and concluded it 1o be fow. The Company has access 1o a sufficient varicty of sources of funding and surplus cash and cash equivatent en
the basis of expected cash Now. The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payment :

As at March 31, 2025

Particulars On demand Less than 12 monihs 1-5 years >5 years Total
Borrowings 1,940.38 4,083.35 - . 6,023.73
Current malurities of lonyg term borrowings (Refer
10 note 13) ) . ) ) )
Secyrity deposit from customers! others - 1.92 - - 1.92
Lease liabilities - - - - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 33 - - 313
Employee related liabilities . 69.18 - - 69.18
Payable for capital goods . 36.52 - - 36.52
Trade pavables - 9.245.04 - - 9.245.04
1,740.38 13,439.33 - - 15,379.70
As at March 31,2024
Particulars On demany Less than 12 months 1-5 years >5 years Total
Bomowings 3.07 3.202.30 - - 3,205.37
Cumrent maturities of tong lerm borrowings {Refer
to note 13) ) N N B
Security deposit from customers/ others B 1.92 - - 1.92
Lease lighilities - - -
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings - 1.04 - - 1.04
Employee related liabilities - 53.00 - - 53.00
Payable for capital goods - 94.63 - . 94.63
Trade pavables - 3.506.88 - - 8.506.88
3.07 11,850.78 . - 11,862.85

Excessive visk concentration

Concentrations arise when a number of cotnterparties are engaged in similar business activities, or activities in the same geographical region, or have economic features that
would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations to be similarly affected by changes in economic, political or other conditions, Concentrations indicate the relative
sensitivity of the Company’s performance to development affecting a particufar industry. The Company is not exposed to excessive concentration since the customers of the
Cempany are not engaged in similar business activities. The Company has a strong custemer base and derives its revenues from many customers belonging to different
industries and corresponding trade receivables are from varied number of customers.
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CMR Nikkel India Private Limited
Notes to financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

34. Falr Value licrarchy

All financial instrumennts for which fair value is recognised or disclosed are categorised wilhin the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is insignificant to the fair value measurements as a whole.

Level 1 : Quoted (unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilitics.

Level 2 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level inputs that has a significant effect on the [2ir value measurement are obscrvable, either direcily or
indirecily.

Level 3 : Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input which has a significant cffect on fair valtie measurement is not bascd on observable market
data

The following 1able provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the company's assets and liabiliries.
Quantitative disclosures Fair value measurement hicrarchy for assets

Fair value measurcment using
Quoted prices  Signifieant Signilicant

Date of valuation Tota) in active observable uncbservable
markets inputs inputs
{Level 1) {Level 2) {Lovel 3)
Financial asscts
A. Amortised Cost:
Security deposit March 31, 2025 74.84 - 74.84 -
Non Current Fixed deposits March 31, 2025 98.66 - 98.66 -
Tatal 173.49 - 173.49 -
Financlal liabilitics
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings March 31, 2025 - - - -
Total . - - -

There have been no transfers between Level { and Level 2 during the year ended March 31, 2025.
Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement bierarchy for assets

Fair value mensurement using
Quoted prices  Significant Significant

Date of valuation Tatal in active observable unobservable
markets inputs tnputs
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3
Financial assets
A. Amortised Cost:
Security deposit March 31, 2024 69.22 - 69.22 -
Non Current Fixed deposits Mareh 31, 2024 91,33 - 91.23 -
Total 160.45 - 160,45 -
Financial liabilitics
A. Amortised Cost:
Borrowings March 31, 2024 - - - -
Total - - - -

There have been no transfers between Level 1 and Leve] 2 during the year ended March 31, 2024




CMR Nikkel India Private Limited
Notes to finpneial statements for the year end!
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless otherwise s

36. Segment inlormation

As per Ind AS 108 identification of sepment is based on the manner in which the entity's Chief Operating decision makers' (CODM) review the business

e March 31, 2025
tated)

components regularly to make decisions about allocating resources to segment and in assessing its performance.

The Chief Qperating Decision maker veviews business perfonnance al an overall Company level as one segment “Aluminium and zine based alloys™

a) Summary of total revenue by Geographical area for the year ended Marceh 31, 2025 is a5 follows:

Products and services

Particutlars

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

For the year ended
March 31, 2024

Revenue from extemal cuslomers

India 2.24.878.55 1.70,802.49
Qutside India 3.052.96 16,477.58
Total 2.27.931.52 1.87,280.06
b) Summary of nost- current assets by geographical location is as fallows:
- For the year endedl For the year ended
Particutars March 31, 2025 March 3t, 2024
Property plant 2nd cquipment
India 8.520.02 9.259.85
Qutside India
Intangible
India 0.39 0.63
Quiside India
Capital Work-in-progress
India 4.72 B
Outside India
Other Non current financial asseis
India 324.63 532.83
Quiside India
Total 8.849.76 9.793.31

¢} Revenue from major customer

Revenue from major customers with percentane of total Revenwe are as below:-

Name of The Custonier

For thie vear ended March 31, 2023

For the venr ended March 31, 2024

Revenue {Rs in lakhs) Revenue {in %) {Revenue (Rs in Iakhs)  Revenue {in %)
Suzuki Motors Gujaral Pvi Lid 46.644.11 20.46%)| 40,332.70 21.54%
CMR Green Technologies Lid 45,542.88 19.98% 40.972,74 21.88%)
Alresty India Pvt, Lid. 43,578.36 19.12% 28,194.46 15.0 ‘!’:I




CMR Nikkei India Private Linited
Notes ta financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20258
(Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwvise stated)

37. Capital Management

The Board's pelicy maintains a strong capital base so as to maitain investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the
business. The Board of Directors monitor the retumn on capital employed as well as the level of dividend 1o shareholders.

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity capital genern! reserves attributable to the equity holders. The
primary objective of the Company's capital management is 10 maximise the sharcholder's value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend paymient to sharcholders, retumn capilal to sharcholders or
isstie new shares.

The Company monitors capilal using a gearing alio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt, The Company includes within net debt,
interest bearing loans and borrowinys, trade and other payables, fess cash and cash equivalents.

Asat Asat
Particutars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Bogrrowings (Refer to note 13) 6,023.73 3,205.37
Current maturity of long term loans {Refer 1o note 15)

Trade payables {Refer to note 16 ) 9,245.04 8,506.87
Other financials liabilities (Refer to note 17 ) 11093 232.26
Less: cash and cash cquivalenis (Refer to note 11 (i) ) (1141 (6.40)
Net debt 15,368.29 11,938.10
Equity share capital 8,297.30 8,297.30
Other equity 22,554.28 19,750.85
Total Capital 30,851,58 28,048.15
Capital and net debi 46,219.88 39,986.25
Gearing ratio 33.25% 29.86%

No changes were made in the objectives, policies o processes for managing capital during the year end March 31, 2025 and March 31, 2024,

There are no indications of impairmeni of any individual cash generating asscts or on cash gencrating units in the opinion of the managemeni and
therefore no test of impairment is carried ont.

=




CMR Nikkei Indla Peivate Limited
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

38{n). Details of ducs to micro and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006

Particulars

As at

Mareh 31,

2025

Asat

March 31, 2024

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any supplicr as af the end of each accounting
period

44,13

134.70

The antount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Agt 2006 along wilh (he amounts of]
the payment made 1o the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of intcrest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but without adding (he interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006

The antount of interest acerued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounling year

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the|
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small cnterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible

expenditure under Section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006




CMR Nikkei Indin Private Limiled
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupees Lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

J8(b). Ratio Analysis and its elements:

Investment

Ratio Numerator Denominalor 31-pMar-25 31-Mar-24 % changpe Reason for variance
Current ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 241 2.52 <4.48% Nat applicable
Shareholder's Equity -
Debt- Equity Ratio | Taral Debt Effective portion ol cash 0.20 ol 70.85%| Increase on account of borrowing.
Mow hedge reserve
Diebt Service Eﬂ hrl':ln[f:o:;rndnc:'l::::s[? Debt service = Interesy
Coverage ratio Nan-cash operating Paymenis + Principal 5.98 238 151.38%| Increase on account of borrowing.
& Repaymenis
£xpenses
Rcfum on Equity Net Profils afer taxes Averngc Shareholder’s 0.10 005 93.14% Increase on account of increase in
lio Equity i ' ) profit.
Inwventory T
matio 7y Tumover Cost of goods sold Average Inventory 1791 15.20 17.82% Not applicable
Trade Receivable  |Net sales = Total sales -
erap ivable k] % i
Turnover Ratio <ales return Average Trade Receivable 14.15 16.29 -13.11% Not applicable
Trade Payable Net Purchases = Total Inerease in Lhe ratio is primarily due 1o
Tumover Ratio Purcliases - purchases Average Trade Payables 24,79 19.52 26.97%|  arise in net purchases during the
relurn period
Net Capital Net sales = Total sales - |Working capital = Current .
Tumover Ratio sales return assels — Current liabilities 10.02 987 1.60% Not applicable
Net Profit ratio Net Profit Net sales = Total sales - 1.23% 0.77% 70.73% Increase in the ratéo is primarily due 1o
sales return increase in profit,
Capital Employed =
Retum on Capilal  (Eammgs before interest  {Tangible Net Worth + 012 0.09 37.55% Increase in the ratio is primarily due 10
Employed and taxes Total Debt -Intangbile T ’ e increase in carnings.
assets
Return on
Net Profit Investment N/A N/A Nia, -




CMIR Nikkei Indin Peivate Limited
Naotes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amount in Rupeces Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

39. In tight of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013, the Company has spent/provision for Rs. 83.90 Lakhs on account of Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR).

Particulars March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
(&) Gross amount required 1o be spent 83.90 105.52
(b} Aniount spent on:

() Censtruction/acquisition of any asset . -
(ii} On purpose other than (i) above - -
{iii) Unspent amount required to be deposited in sepamie a/c 83.90 105.52
(c) Detail of related party transactions out of (b) above: - -

= CMR Welfare Foundation 105.50 83.17

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) had amended Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 vide The Companies {Amendment) Act 2020, whercin 3
praviso was added to Sub-Scction (5) of Section 135 which states that any mmount remaining unspent under section 135 (53, pursuast 1o any onpoing
project, fulfilling such conditions as may be prescribed, undertaken by a company in purswance of its Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, si]all be
transferred by the company within a peried of thirty days from the end of the financial year to a special account 1o be opened by the company in that
behalf for that financial year in any scheduled bank to be called the Unspent Corporale Social Responsibility Account, and such amount shall be spent by
the company in pursuance of its obligation towards the Corparate Social Responsibility Policy within a period of three financial years from the date of
such transfer, failing which, the company shall transfer the same to 2 Fund specified in Schedule VII, within a pericd of thirty days from the date of
completion of the third financial year. Accordingly, the Company had made provision of unspent amount of Rs 105.52 lacs duriny the previous year and
Rs. 83.90 lacs during the current year,

The Company hias duting the current year transferred an amaum of Rs. 83.90 lacs 10 specified bank account.

. In Separate CSR

Particulars Unspent Alc

Opening Balance 98,46

Amount transferred to separate CSR Unspen Afe 105.52
[Amount spent during the period 98.42

Closing Balance 105.55

Details related to unspent obligations:

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Balance in separate CSR unspent account 105.55 98.46
Unspent amount to be transfemred to a specified fand account 33.90 105.52
180.45 203.98

40. In line with the applicable Accounting Standards, during tlie year, pre-perative expenses of Nil (March 31 2024: Nil) up 1o the date of capitalization
have been capitalised.

41, Previous year figures hias been regronped/rearranged wherever is required.

42.The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security 2020 which will impact the contributions / provisian by the Company towards
Provident Fund and gratuity. The effective date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notificd angt the rules for qualifying the financials
impact are yet to be framed. Based on the inilial assessment by the Company, the additional impact on Provident Fund centributions by the Company is
not expected to be material, whereas the likely additional impact on gratuity liability by e Company cotld be material. The Company will complete
their evaluation and will give appropriate impact in the financial statements in the period in which, the code becomes effective and the related rules to
delermine the financial impact are published.

43.0ther Swatutory Information

(i) The Campany do nol have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending apainst the Company for holding any Benami
property.

(ii) The Company do not have any transactions with companies struck off,

(iii) The Campany do not have any cliarges or satisfaction whicl is ye1 1o be registered with ROC beyond the siatulory period.

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Curvency during the financial year.

(v) The Company have not made any foans or advanced in the rature of loans are granied 1o promoters, ditectars, KMPs and related parties (as defined
under Companies Act, 201 3.) either severally or joimly with any other person, thal are;

a) repayable on demand ar

b) without specifying any teans or period of repayment

(vi) The Company have not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the
understanding that the Intermediary shalk;

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persous or enlities identificd in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ullimate
Beneficiaries); or

b provide any puarantee, secutity or the like 10 or on behall of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(vii) The Company have not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ics), including foreign ewtities (Funding Party) with the understanding
(whetlier recorded in writing or othenwise} that the Contpany shall:

a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entilics identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate
Beneficiaries) or;

b) provide any puarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

(viit) The Company have not any such trnsaction which is not recarded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during
the year in the ax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 196] (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisiens of the Income Tax Act, 1961




44. The Company has used accounting software Infor LN and Payroll software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording
audit trail (edit lop) facility and the same lias operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software, except that audit trail
leature is not enabled for certain master tables and direct changes to the underlying database using privileged/ administrative aceess rights in respect of
Infor LN. Further, no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, in respect of accounting sofiware where the audil tra has been enabled. The
audil 1rail has been presented by the company for these software as per the statwtory requirement for record relention.

The accampanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalements

For Mis Goel Sharma & Associates Far and on behalf of the Board of
Chartered Accountants ol CMR Nikkei Ingdia Private Limited
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